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	 k)	 Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2019:

Promoter & Promoter Group

Mutual Fund

Alternate Investment Funds

Foreign Portfolio Investors

Financial Institutions/Banks

Insurance Companies

State Government

Individuals

Others

42.50%

5.97%

0.43%

24.37%

0.49%

5.96%
10% 8.39%

1.89%

	 l)	 Top ten equity shareholders of the Company as on March 31, 2019:

Sr. 
No

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares held Percentage (%)

1 GAIL (India) Ltd 32102750 32.50

2 BG Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Limited 9877780 10.00

3 Governor of Maharashtra 9877778 10.00

4 Schroder International Selection Fund Emerging Asia 4435085 4.49

5 SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd       3510259 3.55

6 L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited-L&T Emerging Businesses Fund      2290112 2.32

7 Lazard Emerging Markets Small Cap Equity Trust 1142526 1.16

8 Eastspring Investments India Equity Open Limited  1081702 1.10

9 Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd.   993986 1.01

10 ITPL - Invesco India Contra Fund 976079 0.99

	 m)	 Plant Locations:

	 a.	 City Gate Station, Opposite Anik Bus Depot, 
Sion, Mumbai - 400 022.

	 b.	 City Gate Station, MIDC Mahape, Post-Koper 
Khairane, Navi Mumbai - 400 709.

	 c.	 City Gate Station,  Plot No : TAK-A, Ambernath 
Industrial Area, Ambernath - Badlapur Road,  
Village - Chikhaloli, Tal-Ambernath, District - 
Thane - 421 506.

	 d.	 City Gate Station, Plot No: J-93/2, Taloja 
MIDC Area, Taloja, District - Raigad -  
410 208.

	 n)	 List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity 
along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 
financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity 
or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of 
funds, whether in India or abroad:
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	 I.	 Letter dated June 04, 2018 – ` 600 Crore 
Line of Credit (Non-fund based limit) 

		  a.	 Long-term rating ` 200 Crore - [ICRA]
AAA (Stable) and 

		  b.	 Short term rating ` 400 Crore [ICRA]
A1+ 

		  Outlook on long term rating is stable.

	 II.	 Letter dated June 04, 2018 – ` 100 Crore 
Long-term debt - [ICRA]AAA. The outlook on 
long term rating is stable.

	 o)	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any 
Convertible instruments, conversions details and 
likely impact on equity:

		  The Company has not issued any GDR/ADRs in 
the past and hence not applicable as on March 
31, 2019. The Company does not have any 
outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrante or any 
convertible instruments.

	 p)	 Commodities Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk and 
Hedging activities: 

		  The details of foreign currency exposure and 
hedging (unhedged however managed partially 
through natural hedge) are disclosed in Note no. 
31.4 (c) (iii) to the Financial Statements.

9.	 DISCLOSURES:
	 a.	 Disclosure on material significant related party 

transactions :

		  All the Related party transactions (“RPTs”) entered 
into by your Company, during the Financial year 
2018-19 were at arm’s length and in the ordinary 
course of business of the Company.

		  All such transactions had prior approval of Audit 
Committee and the Board and in case of material 
related party transactions; approval of shareholders 
is also obtained in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of Listing Regulations. 

	 b.	 Details of non-compliance :

		  Your Company has complied with all applicable 
provisions of the Listing Regulations and all other 
applicable regulations and guidelines issued by 
SEBI and Stock Exchanges. Consequently, there has 

been no instance of non compliance with any legal 
requirements and hence, no penalties or strictures 
are imposed on your Company by SEBI or the Stock 
Exchanges or any statutory authority on any matter 
related to the capital markets during the last 3 years. 
The shares of the Company were listed on the BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange Limited on July 
01, 2016.

	 c.	 Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism :

	 	 Your Company has in place Whistle Blower Policy /  
Vigil Mechanism which facilitate direct access to the 
Management and the Audit Committee of the Board 
for all Stakeholders to report concerns about any 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.  It is 
hereby affirmed that no personnel had been denied 
access to the Audit Committee under Whistle Blower 
Policy. The said policy has been uploaded on the 
website of the Company (www.mahanagargas.
com).

		  Also, the Company has in place the “Policy for 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace”. 
This ensures a work environment that is professional 
and mature, free from animosity and which includes 
respect for the individuals.

	 d.	 Other Policies, Programmes and Codes of the 
Company:

	 i.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Policy:
		  In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of 

the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your 
Company has adopted Corporate Social 
Responsibility policy having the following 
scope:

zz Planning project or programmes which 
a Company plans to undertake falling 
within the purview of Schedule VII of the 
Act; and

zz Monitoring process of such project or 
programmes.

	 ii.	 Risk Management Policy :
		  For assessment and minimisation of risks in 

terms of Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, 
your Company has framed a Risk Management 
Policy. The policy covers inherent business 
risks and appropriate measures to be taken 
by the Company.
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	 iii.	 Policy on Related Party Transactions:
		  In terms of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations, 

your Company has framed a Policy on RPTs to 
regulate transactions of the Company with its 
related parties (as defined and identified under 
the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations), to ensure 
high standards of Corporate Governance 
while dealing with related parties and also to 
ensure optimum compliance with applicable 
laws prescribed for RPTs. The policy is also 
available on the website of the Company i.e.  
www.mahanagargas.com.

	 iv.	 Code of internal procedure and conduct to 
monitor and report trading by Designated 
Persons in listed Securities of Mahanagar Gas 
Limited:

		  Your Company had adopted Insider Trading 
Code to be observed by all the insiders as 
defined under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, as may be amended 
from time to time (“SEBI Insider Trading 
Regulations”). 

		  Further, the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations 
have been amended and pursuant to such 
amendment, your Company has adopted 
a revised Code i.e. “Code of internal 
procedures and Conduct to regulate, monitor 
and report trading by Designated Persons in 
listed Securities of Mahanagar Gas Limited” 
w.e.f. April 01, 2019, which states your 
Company’s policy and code to be followed 
by Designated Persons for dealing in securities 
of the Company.

	 v.	 Policy for Determination of Materiality of 
Information or Event:

		  In terms of Regulation 30 of Listing Regulations, 
your Company has adopted this policy for 
determination of materiality of information 
or event for facilitating prompt disclosure of 
material price sensitive information to the 
Stock Exchange(s) in compliance with the 
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulation.

	 vi.	 Policy on Preservation of Documents: 
		  In terms of Regulation 9 of Listing Regulations, 

your Company has adopted a  policy for 
preservation of documents.

	 vii.	 Code of Practice and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information:

		  The SEBI Insider Trading Regulations, as 
amended, mandates every listed company to 
formulate a code of practices and procedures 
for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information that it would follow in 
order to adhere to each of the principles set 
out in Schedule A to the SEBI Insider Trading 
Regulations.

		  The aforementioned code is also available 
on the website of the Company i.e.  
www.mahanagargas.com

	 e.	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements 
and adoption of non-mandatory requirements:

	 I.	 Your Company complies with corporate 
governance requirements as specified under 
Listing Regulations. 

	 II.	 The Company  has maintained an office for its 
Non-Executive Chairman.

	 III.	 The Company publishes its results on its 
website at www.mahanagargas.com which 
is accessible to the public at large. A half-year 
declaration of financial performance including 
summary of the significant events is presently 
not being sent separately to each household of 
each shareholder. Your Company’s results for 
each quarter are published in the newspapers 
having a wide circulation.

	 IV.	 During the period under review, there is no 
audit qualification in the Company’s financial 
statements. Your Company continues to adopt 
best practices to ensure regime of unqualified 
financial statements.

	 V.	 The Company has separate position for 
Chairman and Managing Director.

	 VI.	 The Internal Auditor reports their findings to the 
Audit Committee of the Company.

	 f) 	 Subsidiary companies:

		  As on March 31, 2019, your Company did 
not have any subsidiary.
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	 g)		 Code of Conduct:

		  In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and the Act, the Company has in place 
comprehensive Code of Conduct applicable to the 
Board and Senior Management Personnel. The 
Code of Conduct is formulated with a purpose to 
ensure good corporate governance and ethical 
and transparent process in managing the affairs of 
the Company. A copy of the Code of Conduct has 
been uploaded on the Company’s website (www.
mahanagargas.com). All members of the Board 
and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the 
financial year 2018-19.

	 h)	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

		  The Company has followed all applicable and 
relevant Accounting Standards while preparing the 
Financial Statements.

	 i)	 Certification from Company Secretary in Practice : 

		  A certificate has been received from M/s. Santosh 
Singh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary,  
certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority which forms 
part of this Report.

	 j) 	 Details of recommendation of any committee of 
the Board not accepted by the Board and reasons 
thereof : Not Applicable

	 k) 	 S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 324982E/E300003) have been 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
The particulars of payment of Statutory Auditor’s 
fees, on consolidated basis is given below:

(` in lakh)

Particulars Amount

Audit Fees 57.82

Out-of-pocket expense 1.07

Total 58.89

	 l) 	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of 
Woman at Workplace (Preventation, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 :

	 In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, 
the Company has constituted Internal Complaint 
Committee (ICC). While maintaining the highest 
governance norms, the members of this committee 
comprises of representatives from the Company and 
external expert/NGO who have worked in this 
area and have the requisite experience in handling 
such matters. The Company has zero tolerance on 
Sexual Harassment at workplace.

	 The details of complaint received, resolved and 
pending under Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 
2013 are mentioned below:

Sr.  
No

Particulars No. of 
Complaints

1 Number of complaints filed during the  
FY 2018-19

1

2 Number of complaints disposed of 
during the FY 2018-19

1

3 Number of complaints pending as on 
end of the FY 2018-19

0

	 m)	 Unclaimed Dividend :

	 Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act,  read 
with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016 (“IEPF Rules”) , including amendment thereto, 
dividend, if not  claimed within seven years from the 
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). 

	 The following table provides information relating 
to various outstanding dividends and the dates by 
which they can be claimed by the shareholders from 
the Company’s Registar and Transfer Agent and if 
not claimed within the period of 7 years, then, the 
same would become eligible to be  transferred to 
the IEPF on the dates mentioned below:
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Financial 
Year

Date of declaration of 
dividend and type of 
dividend

Total Dividend 
(in `)

Unclaimed 
Dividend as on 

March 31, 2019

Due Date for 
transfer of 
unclaimed  
dividend to IEPF

Percentage 
of unclaimed 

dividend over 
Total Dividend

2018-19 January 29, 2019 – Interim 
Dividend

938,388,891.00 9,42,78,019.00 February 28, 2026 10.05

2017-18 September 17, 2018 – Final 
Dividend

1,086,555,558.00 10,93,06,153.01 October 17, 2025 10.06

2017-18 February 09, 2018 – Interim 
Dividend

790,222,224.00 2,93,776.00 March 10, 2025 0.03

2016-17 September 25, 2017 – Final 1,067,494,478.44 389,906.35 October 25, 2024 0.03

2016-17 February 11, 2017 – Interim 
Dividend

1,563,478,000.00 311,168.00 March 13, 2024 0.02

2015-16 September 26, 2016 – Final 776,351,042.00 633,535.00 October 26, 2023 0.08

	 n)	 Corporate Identity Number (CIN): 

	 The Company is registered with Registrar of 
Companies (ROC) in State of Maharashtra, India. 
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to 
the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) is L40200MH1995PLC088133.

	 o)	 	Registered Office :  

		  MGL House, Block No: G-33, Bandra-Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

	 p)	 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
Company :

	 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
	 MGL House, G-33 Block
	 Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)
	 Mumbai - 400 051
	 Tel: +91 (22) 2652 8924
	 Fax: +91 (22) 2652 8925
	 Email: investorrelations@mahanagargas.com

	 The members may communicate their complaints, 
relating to the securities issued by the Company, to 
the Company Secretary on the above mentioned co-
ordinates.

	 q)		 Registrar and Transfer Agents (“RTA”):

	 Link Intime India Pvt Ltd
	 C 101, 247 Park,
	 L B S Marg, Vikhroli West,
	 Mumbai - 400 083
	 Telephone No: +91 22 49186000 
	 Fax: +91 22 49186060
	 Website : www.linkintime.co.in

	 r)	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

	 As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing 
Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of 
Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted 
capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued 
and paid-up capital. This audit is carried out 
every quarter and the report there on is submitted 
to the Stock Exchanges and is placed before the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The audit, inter 
alia, confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital 
of the Company is in agreement with the aggregate 
of the total number of shares in dematerialized form 
held with NSDL and CDSL and total number of 
shares in physical form.

	 s)	 Equity Shares in the Suspense Account:

	 As per Schedule V read with Schedule VI, Regulation 
34(3), 53(f) and 39(4) of Listing Regulations, 
the details in respect of equity shares lying in the 
suspense / escrow account are as under:
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Particulars Number of share 
holders

Number of equity 
shares held

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense / 
escrow account (maintained with CDSL & NSDL) lying as on April 01, 2018 

0 0

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from 
suspense / escrow account (maintained with NSDL) during the year

0 0

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense / escrow 
account (maintained with NSDL) during the year

0 0

Aggregate Number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 
account (maintained with CDSL & NSDL) lying as on March 31, 2019

0 0

	 t)	 Feedback:

	 Your feedback is valuable to us to help us serve you better. Members are requested to give us their valuable suggestions, 
if any, for enhancement of our Investor Services by writing to us / RTA at the address provided hereinabove.

	 u)	 CEO and CFO Certification:

	 As required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of Listing Regulations, Mr. Sanjib Datta, Managing Director and Mr. 
Sunil Ranade, Chief Financial Officer have reviewed the Audited Financial Results and Cash Flow Statements for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 and accordingly have provided a certificate, which forms part of this Report.

	 v)	 Report on Corporate Governance

	 As required under Regulation 27 of Listing Regulations, your Company has been duly submitting the quarterly compliance 
report in the prescribed format and within the required timelines to the Stock Exchanges and the same are available on 
their websites. The said reports are also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.mahanagargas.com

	 The Compliance Certificate received from the Practicing Company Secretary i.e. M/s. Santosh Singh & Associates 
regarding compliance of Corporate Governance requirements is forming part of to this report.

	 Further, your Company has complied with the Corporate  Governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and the same has been disclosed in this Report.
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CERTIFICATE
(Pursuant to clause 10 of Part C of schedule V of LODR) 

To
The Members,
Mahanagar Gas Limited

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015; (LODR) in respect of Mahanagar Gas Limited (CIN: L40200MH1995PLC088133), I 
hereby  certify that:

On the basis of the written representation/declaration received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, as 
on March 31, 2019 none of the directors on the board of Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

For Santosh Singh & Associates,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code S2002UP057500)

Santosh Kumar Singh
Proprietor
ACS No.	: 15964
CP No.: 17638

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2019
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CEO - CFO CERTIFICATION

To 
The Board of Directors
Mahanagar Gas Limited

A.	 We have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of Mahanagar Gas Limited (the “Company”) 
for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

	 I.	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statement that might 
be misleading;

	 II.	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 
ended on March 31, 2019 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Code of Conduct of the Company.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps that we have taken or proposed to be taken to rectify the deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

	 I.	 Significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the Financial Year ended on March 
31, 2019;

	 II.	 Significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 have been 
disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements; and

	 III.	 Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and involvement therein, if any, of the management or 
other employees having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

	
Place: Mumbai 	 Sunil M. Ranade	 Sanjib Datta
Date:  April 23, 2019 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director

DECLARATION
As provided under the provisions of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 
have affirmed the compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2019.		

Place: Mumbai		  Sanjib Datta
Date:  April 23, 2019		  Managing Director                                                                               
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members, 
Mahanagar Gas Limited, 
MGL House, Block No. G-33,
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Mahanagar Gas Limited (hereinafter referred as 
“Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2019 as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 and paras C, D and E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing Regulations”).

We state that compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management and our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the explanations 
given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as prescribed under Listing 
Regulations. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with Listing Regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose.

For Santosh Singh & Associates,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code S2002UP057500)

Santosh Kumar Singh
Proprietor
ACS No.: 15964
CP No.: 17638

Place:  Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

To
The Members of
Mahanagar Gas Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements

OPINION
1.	 We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial 

statements of Mahanagar Gas Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other 
comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

BASIS FOR OPINION
2.	 We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Ind AS financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
3.	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our 
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

4.	 We have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described 
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements section of our report, including in 
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 
the performance of procedures designed to respond to 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, 
including the procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Contingencies: Raigarh Minimum Work Programme Commitment (MWP)

(as described in notes 31.8 containing details of contingencies in the financial statements)

The Company has a commitment to achieve MWP for its Raigarh 
Geographical Area (GA) as per the PNGRB authorization letter 
dated April 01, 2015 under the PNGRB (Authorizing Entities to 
Lay, Operate or Expand City or Local Natural Gas Distribution 
Networks ((GSR 196 (E)) Regulations, 2008. The commitment 
was to be achieved by March 2020 with yearly rest as 
stated in the authorization letter. The Company has provided 
a performance bank guarantee amounting to ` 10,520 lakhs 
against this commitment to PNGRB.

zz We read the copies of communication exchanged 
between PNGRB and the Company during the year. 
We have compared the said communication with the 
appropriateness of disclosure in the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Till March 31, 2018, the Company was unable to achieve 
the cumulative MWP target and basis the meeting with PNGRB 
representatives dated 12th March 2018 and the Show Cause 
Notice received by PNGRB dated July 23, 2018 the Company 
submitted the remedial action plan on August 2, 2018 to 
achieve the target by March 31, 2020 with revised yearly rest. 

The Company has achieved the cumulative target as specified 
in the remedial action plan for the year ended March 31, 
2019 for domestic connections, however it has not achieved 
the cumulative target for laying steel inch km of pipelines. 

This area is significant to our audit, since the encashment of 
bank guarantee is dependent on the Company achieving the 
targets as committed to the PNGRB as be the revised remedial 
plan and any further extention thereof including PNGRB’s view 
of such default. 

The Company has part achieved its cumulative target in the 
current year, there exist uncertainty of whether PNGRB would 
levy the penalty and encash the bank guarantees which can 
have a material impact on the financial statements. Considering 
this uncertainty, the Company has disclosed the matter as a 
contingent liability as at March 31, 2019 as there has been 
no further communication received from PNGRB in this matter.

zz  We performed inquiries with the in house legal counsel 
and the commercial team on the legal evaluation 
of the PNGRB show cause letter including the legal 
advice obtained by the Company and understood their 
interpretation of the implications on the Company and 
obtained a specific representation on the management’s 
interpretation and implication.

zz We obtained and discussed with the management and 
those charged with governance on its ability to achieve 
the commitment as per the remedial action plan and its 
view on encashment of bank guarantee.

zz We evaluated the disclosures in the financial statements 
with the representations given by the management.

Impairment of slow moving/non-moving projects lying in Capital Work–in–Progress 

(as described in note 2.2(b) of the significant accounting policies, and note 3 for details and movement in capital work-in-progress 
in the financial statements)

As at March 31, 2019, the Company has ` 36,968.66 lakhs 
of Capital Work-in-Progress.

The Company’s spending on Capital Work-in-progress is material 
as indicated by the total value as at date. The assessment 
and the timing of put to use of the asset as set out in Ind AS 
16, ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’, requires judgement and 
is dependent on the completion of projects after obtaining all 
necessary approvals. 

The Company has long outstanding capital work-in-progress 
relating to old slow/non-moving projects which have been 
delayed because several internal and external factors.

As a result, this was noted as a key audit matter, with focus 
on certain slow moving/non-moving projects, where the risk 
of assessment of impairment of such items was deemed higher 
because of the complexity of the specific project’s and the 
delays involved.

Our audit procedures among others included the following:

zz Assessed the design and implementation and tested 
the operating effectiveness of key controls over the 
management review of capital work in progress.

zz We obtained the list of delayed projects from the 
management and on a sample basis obtained reasons of 
the delay and the expected capitalization dates from the 
management.

zz For assets capitalized during the year, we considered 
the planned vs actual capitalization dates to test the 
management’s assessment of expected capitalization 
dates.

zz We tested management’s assessment of indicators of 
impairment of old projects as may be required. 

zz For old projects capitalized during the year, we tested on 
sample basis to determine that the useful life of the asset 
was adjusted to reflect the wear and tear of such assets.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Contingencies: Uran Trombay Transportation Tariff Matter

(as described in notes 31.9 containing details of contingencies of the financial statements)

The Company has entered into an agreement with GAIL (India) 
Limited for supply of Natural Gas, which is being supplied by 
ONGC to GAIL at ONGC Trombay. ONGC is transporting 
its own gas from ONGC Uran to Trombay through its Uran 
Trombay Natural Gas Pipeline (UTNGPL).

The Company has certain disputes with GAIL with respect 
to applicability of transportation tariff of UTNGPL as levied 
retrospectively from 20th November 2008 till date of ` 15,277 
lacs which has not been provided in the books of accounts 
or paid to GAIL till date. The dispute is currently at Appellate 
Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL).

The claims made by the Company involves complex estimation 
and the Company is required to assess the need to make 
provision or disclose a contingency considering the underlying 
facts of the litigation and its probability of winning the case at 
the APTEL. 

This area is significant to our audit, since the accounting and 
disclosure for contingent legal liabilities is complex and involves 
judgment in assessment of the outcome of the matter and 
estimating the potential impact if the outcome is unfavorable, 
and the amounts involved are, or can be, material to the 
financial statements.

Our audit procedures among others included the following:

zz We evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of controls in respect of the identification 
and evaluation of claims, proceedings and investigations 
at different levels, and the recording and continuous 
re-assessment of the related contingent liabilities and 
disclosures.

zz We performed inquiries with the in house legal counsel on 
the legal evaluation of the litigation.

zz We have tested the underlying computation of the 
management in relation to the measurement of the 
contingency.

zz We have obtained written legal confirmation of litigation 
claims and have relied on the written legal opinion 
obtained by the Company from the Company’s internal 
and external legal counsel for the matter relating to their 
expectations of the company’s prospects in this case.

zz We evaluated the disclosures in the financial statements

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

	 When we read the remaining report, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

	 Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS 
Financial Statements

6.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting (Ind AS) specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2018, 
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

OTHER INFORMATION 
5.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

other information. The other information comprises the 
directors report, business responsibility report and the 
corporate governance report but does not include the Ind 
AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, 
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
and the message from chairman, financial snapshot, 
management discussion and analysis, which is expected 
to be made available to us after that date. 

	 Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

	 In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether such 
other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed on the other information 
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of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

7.	 In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors 
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements

8.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Ind AS financial statements.

9.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

zz Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

zz Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

zz Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

zz Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

zz Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the Ind AS financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

10.	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

11.	 We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

12.	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

13.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

14.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit;

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second 
Amendment Rules, 2018, as amended;

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company 
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this 
report;

	 (g)	 In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for 
the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid 
/ provided by the Company to its directors in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

	 i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 
31.9 to the Ind AS financial statements;

	 ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

	 iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 105938

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 
13 OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE  
Re: Mahanagar Gas Limited (‘the Company’)

(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

	 (b)	 All fixed assets have not been physically verified 
by the management during the year but there is 
a regular programme of verification of all assets 
except for underground assets in relation to the gas 
distribution network which cannot be physically 
verified. The programme for physical verification 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the title deeds of immovable 
properties, included in property, plant and 
equipment are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) 	 The management has conducted physical verification of 
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical 
verification.

(iii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, 
guarantees, and securities given in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) 	 The Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of 
the Order are not applicable. 

(vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 
records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 related to the sale of natural gas and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)	 (a)	 The Company is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, GST 
and other statutory dues applicable to it.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, 
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at 
the year end, for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.

	 (c)	 According to the records of the Company, the dues 
outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
excise duty on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Name of the Statute Nature 
of Dues

Amount  
` in lacs (unpaid)

Period to which the amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise 
Duty

305.14 March 2001 -  
December 2004

High Court

3,241.10 July 2005 - April 2016 CESTAT/CESTAT (Appeal)

1,674.71 April 2014 - April 2016 Commissioner/Commissioner (Appeal)

226.12 March 2010 -  
July 2017

Joint Commissioner/Joint Commissioner 
(Appeals)

153.38 October 2014 - April 2017 Assistant Commissioner

273.80 April 2014 - April 2016 Additional Commissioner

7.74 Jan 2016 - April 2017 Superintendent of Central Goods and 
Service Tax

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Service 
Tax

451.31 May 2005 -  
September 2015

CESTAT/CESTAT (Appeal)

64.74 April 2006 -  
September 2015

Commissioner/Commissioner (Appeal)

3.99 April 2014 - January 2016 Assistant Commissioner

13.88 October 2015-  
March 2017

Deputy Commissioner

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax Act, 2002

Sales 
Tax

299.03 April 2006 -  
March 2011

Joint Commissioner/Joint Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income 
Tax

157.42 AY 2002-2003 to AY 
2016-2017

Commissioner of Income Tax / 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

13.05 Assessment Year  
2005-2006

Income Tax Assessing Officer

(viii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans to government. 
The Company did not have any outstanding loans or 
borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution or bank 
or dues to debenture holders during the year.

(ix) 	 According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not raised any money 
by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt 
instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause 
(ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

(x)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, we report that 
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the 
Company by the officers and employees of the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has 
been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to 
the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, transactions with the related parties are 
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(xiv)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review and hence, 
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not 
applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, the provisions of 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are 
not applicable to the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 105938

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 09, 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019’
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ANNEXURE II REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF 
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting with Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
with reference to these financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to these financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Mahanagar Gas Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the 
Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.



127

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financials

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting with Reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to these financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
with reference to these financial statements and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 105938

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 2019’
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 (` in Lakh)

Particular Notes As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018 

ASSETS
I.	 Non-current Assets
	 (a)	 Property, Plant and Equipment 3  175,875.27  152,805.91 
	 (b)	 Capital Work-in-Progress 3  36,968.66  35,662.28 
	 (c)	 Intangible Assets 3  466.14  389.08 
	 (d)	 Financial Assets
		  (i)	 Trade Receivables 4  6.32  20.47 
		  (ii)	 Security Deposits 5  1,921.37  1,774.95 
		  (iii)	 Other Financial Assets 6  35.75  2,516.52 
	 (e)	 Income Tax Assets (net)  3,361.37  2,399.35 
	 (f)	 Other Non-current Assets 7  7,880.74  7,905.11 
Total Non-current Assets (I)  226,515.62  203,473.67 
II.	 Current assets
	 (a)	 Inventories 8  1,911.79  2,399.86 
	 (b)	 Financial Assets
		  (i)	 Investments 9  65,401.65  68,768.42 
		  (ii)	 Trade Receivables 4  9,953.11  8,846.90 
		  (iii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 10  2,653.12  1,501.54 
		  (iv)	 Bank balances other than (iii) above 11  27,230.90  7,686.29 
		  (v)	 Security Deposits 5  859.63  1,552.24 
		  (vi)	 Other Financial Assets 12  7,749.32  5,079.89 
	 (c)	 Other current assets 13  1,827.30  1,714.78 
Total Current Assets (II)  117,586.82  97,549.92 
TOTAL (I+II)  344,102.44  301,023.59 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I.	 Equity
	 (a)	 Equity Share Capital 14  9,877.78  9,877.78 
	 (b)	 Other Equity 15  230,009.23  199,656.85 
Total Equity (I)  239,887.01  209,534.63 
II.	 Liabilities
A.	 Non-current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Financial Liabilities
		  (i)	 Borrowings 16  -    119.51 
		  (ii)	 Security Deposits 17  180.88  85.94 
	 (b)	 Provisions 18  1,431.12  1,475.19 
	 (c)	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 19  20,483.87  17,482.94 
Total Non-current Liabilities (A)  22,095.87  19,163.58 
B.	 Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Current Financial Liabilities
		  (i)	 Trade Payables 20
			   - outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  647.47  347.88 
			   - outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  14,597.40  10,654.81 
		  (ii)	 Security Deposits  51,791.67  44,315.39 
		  (iii)	 Other Financial Liabilities 21  9,944.61  12,568.55 
	 (b)	 Provisions 18  688.36  514.34 
	 (c)	 Income Tax Liabilities (net)  80.77  80.77 
	 (d)	 Other Current Liabilities 22  4,369.28  3,843.64 
Total Current Liabilities (B)  82,119.56  72,325.38 
Total Liabilities (II = A+B)  104,215.43  91,488.96 
TOTAL (I+II)  344,102.44  301,023.59
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-31

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2019

In terms of our report attached

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahanagar Gas Limited

Per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 105938 

Sanjib Datta
Managing Director
DIN: 07008785

S M Ranade
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No: 39230

Alok Mishra
CS & Compliance Officer
ACS No: A-15967

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019
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In terms of our report attached

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahanagar Gas Limited

Per Vikram Mehta                                        
Partner
Membership No: 105938 

Sanjib Datta
Managing Director
DIN: 07008785

S M Ranade
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No: 39230

Alok Mishra
CS & Compliance Officer
ACS No: A-15967

Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

 (` in Lakh)

Particular Notes For the 
year ended  

31st March 2019

For the 
year ended  

31st March 2018
I Revenue from Contracts with Customers 23  305,679.34  245,291.74 
II Other Income 24  7,771.25  5,768.06 
III Total Income (I + II)  313,450.59  251,059.80 

IV Expenses :

Cost of Natural Gas and Traded Items 25  139,926.42  102,916.24 
Changes in Inventories 26  (10.42)  (4.69)
Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas  26,572.00  21,991.04 
Employee Benefits Expense 27  7,087.90  6,701.67 
Finance Costs 28  32.28  9.04 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3  12,593.07  11,118.46 
Other Expenses 29  43,558.12  35,676.71 
Total Expenses  229,759.37  178,408.47 

V Profit Before Tax for the year (III- IV)  83,691.22  72,651.33 

VI Income Tax Expense :
(i)	 Current Tax  26,139.71  21,175.81 
(ii)	 Deferred Tax  2,912.60  3,688.29 
Total Income Tax Expense (i+ii)  29,052.31  24,864.10 

VII Profit After Tax for the year (V - VI)  54,638.91  47,787.23 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss : 30
Gains/(Losses) on Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans  192.51  159.01 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (67.27)  (56.31)
Total Other Comprehensive Income  125.24  102.70 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIII)  54,764.15  47,889.93 

X Earnings per equity share (EPS) (Face value of ` 10/- each) 31.7
	 Basic (`)  55.31  48.38 
	 Diluted (`)  55.31  48.38 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-31   

There were no exceptional item(s) and discontinued operation(s) during the years presented.

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended March 31, 2019

 (` in Lakh)

Particular For the  
year ended  

31st March 2019

For the  
year ended  

31st March 2018

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  83,691.22  72,651.33 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  12,593.07  11,118.46 

Writeoff and Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  421.66  249.21 

Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss  (74.47)  59.94 

Gain on sale of Investments  (281.60)  (441.86)

Unrealised Gain on Investments  (1,178.92)  (629.19)

Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (Net)  (2.83)  18.09 

Expected credit loss allowance for Security Deposits (Net)  559.04  92.70 

Bad Trade Receivables written off  62.81  10.07 

Sundry Deposits written off  140.82  31.93 

Finance Costs  32.28  9.04 

Dividend Income on Investments  (1,952.64)  (1,889.84)

Interest Income  (2,674.94)  (1,449.32)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  91,335.50  79,830.56 

Movements in working capital :

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  488.07  (23.52)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  (1,152.04)  500.09 

(Increase)/Decrease in Security Deposits  (65.96)  (60.74)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets  (2,756.46)  (915.34)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Assets  (8.18)  354.58 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  (112.52)  348.65 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities  (4,854.95)  3,446.11 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  322.46  82.73 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  4,316.65  (1,066.23)

Increase/(Decrease) in Security Deposits (Liability)  7,478.40  5,599.27 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  525.64  (47.16)

 4,181.11  8,218.44 

Cash Generated from Operations  95,516.61  88,049.00 

Income Taxes Paid  (27,080.68)  (22,835.82)

Net Cash from Operating Activities  68,435.93  65,213.18 
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2019

 (` in Lakh)

Particular For the  
year ended  

31st March 2019

For the  
year ended  

31st March 2018

II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment  (36,245.02)  (26,902.89)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  26.64  16.58 

Payments for purchase of Investments  (404,961.68)  (324,204.84)

Proceeds from sale of Investments  409,696.61  303,781.94 

Movements in Bank Deposits not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents  (16,119.52)  2,484.39 

Interest Received  1,822.30  1,068.50 

Dividend Received on Investments  1,952.64  1,889.84 

Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities  (43,828.03)  (41,866.48)

III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowings  (119.51)  (150.52)

Dividend Paid (Includes Dividend Distribution Tax)  (23,302.41)  (22,359.04)

Interest Paid  (34.40)  (74.50)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities  (23,456.32)  (22,584.06)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I+II+III)  1,151.58  762.64 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 10)  1,501.54  738.90 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10)  2,653.12  1,501.54 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahanagar Gas Limited

Per Vikram Mehta                                        
Partner
Membership No: 105938 

Sanjib Datta
Managing Director
DIN: 07008785

S M Ranade
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No: 39230

Alok Mishra
CS & Compliance Officer
ACS No: A-15967

Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019		

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Equity Share Capital Reserves and Surplus

Number of 
shares

Equity share 
capital [a] 
(note 14)

General 
Reserve [b] 

(note 15)

Retained 
earnings [c] 

(note 15)
Total [a+b+c]

Balance as at 1st April 2017  98,777,778  9,877.78  21,183.81  1,52,942.15  1,84,003.74 

Add: Profit for the Year  -    -    -    47,787.23  47,787.23 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 
(refer note 30)

 -    -    -    102.70  102.70 

Final Dividend Paid for FY 2016-17 **  -    -    -    (10,674.95)  (10,674.95)

Interim Dividend Paid for FY 2017-18 #  -    -    -    (7,902.22)  (7,902.22)

Tax on Dividend Paid  -    -    -    (3,781.87)  (3,781.87)

Balance as at 31st March 2018  98,777,778  9,877.78  21,183.81  1,78,473.04  2,09,534.63 

Add: Profit for the Year  -    -    -    54,638.91  54,638.91 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 
(refer note 30)

 -    -    -    125.24  125.24 

Final Dividend Paid for FY 2017-18 #  -    -    -    (10,865.55)  (10,865.55)

Interim Dividend Paid for FY 2018-19  (9,383.89)  (9,383.89)

Tax on Dividend Paid  -    -    -    (4,162.33)  (4,162.33)

Balance as at 31st March 2019  98,777,778  9,877.78  21,183.81  2,08,825.42  2,39,887.01 

** Total dividend paid for the FY 2016-17 is `18,438.46 lakh which includes special dividend of `6,307.79 lakh.
# Total dividend paid for the FY 2017-18 is `18,767.77 lakh which includes special dividend of `6,420.56 lakh.		
			 

In terms of our report attached

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahanagar Gas Limited

Per Vikram Mehta                                        
Partner
Membership No: 105938 

Sanjib Datta
Managing Director
DIN: 07008785

S M Ranade
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No: 39230

Alok Mishra
CS & Compliance Officer
ACS No: A-15967

Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019
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1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION
	 Mahanagar Gas Limited (“MGL” or “the company”) is a 

limited company domiciled in India and was incorporated 
on May 8, 1995. Equity shares of the Company are listed 
in India on the Bombay Stock Exchange and The National 
Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company 
is located at MGL House, G-33 Block, Bandra-Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051. 

	 MGL is in the business of City Gas Distribution (“CGD”), 
presently supplying Natural Gas in the city of Mumbai 
including its adjoining areas and the Raigad district, in the 
State of Maharashtra, India.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee 
(INR) which is also Functional Currency of the Company. 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the 
directors on 9th May, 2019.

	 All values are rounded off to the nearest  ` lakh except 
when stated otherwise.

2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting 
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied 
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1	 Basis of preparation
	 a.	 Statement of Compliance :

	 The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Ind AS notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended from time to time). 

	 b.	 Historical cost convention

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, 
except for certain items that are measured at fair 
value as required by relevant Ind AS:

zz Financial assets and financial liabilities mea.
sured initially at fair value (refer accounting 
policy on financial Instruments);

zz Defined benefit and other long-term employee 
benefits.

	 c.	 Current vs Non-Current Classification:

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is

zz Expected to be realised or intended to be sold 
or consumed in normal operating cycle

zz Held primarily for the purpose of trading

zz Expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

zz Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is treated as current when

zz It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle

zz It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

zz It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period, or

zz There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets and liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

2.2	 Property, plant and equipment
	 All items of property, plant and equipment are carried 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that 
is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of 
the items. Subsequent costs are added to existing item’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate item, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other subsequent costs related to an item are charged to 
the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period 
in which they are incurred. In case of commissioned 
assets where final payment to the contractors is pending, 
capitalisation is made on provisional basis subject to 
necessary adjustment in cost and depreciation in the year 
of settlement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019
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	 a.	 Commissioning

	 Gas distribution systems are treated as commissioned 
when supply of gas reaches to the individual points 
and ready for intended use.

	 b.	 Capital work-in-progress

	 Capital Work-in-Progress includes, material, labour 
and other directly attributable costs incurred on 
assets, which are yet to be commissioned. Capital 
Inventory is included in Capital work-in-progress and 
comprises stock of capital items and construction 
materials at stores and with contractors.

	 c.	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and 
residual value

	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line 
method to allocate cost, net of estimated residual 
value, over estimated useful lives. 

	 The useful lives and residual values are as prescribed 
under schedule II to Companies Act, 2013, except 
in respect of, following category of property plant 
and equipment where useful life estimated as 
per management estimate is based on technical 
advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, 
replacements generally required from the point of 
view of operational effectiveness:

	 CNG Compressors and Dispensers - 10 years

	 CNG Cascades - 20 years

	 Underground pipeline network - 25 years

	 Intangible assets (Softwares/Licenses) are amortised 
over 6 years based on useful life. 

	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period.

	 Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment 
added / disposed off / discarded during the year 
is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the 
time of addition/disposal/discarding.

	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These 
are included in the statement of profit and loss under 
Other Expenses.

	 d.	 Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to 
continue with the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment as recognised in the financial 

statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that 
as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after 
making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning 
liabilities. This exemption can also be used for 
intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 - Intangible 
Assets. 

		  Accordingly, the Company had elected to measure 
all of its property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying 
value.

2.3	 Impairment of assets 
	 The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at 

each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. The 
cash generating unit is the group of asset that generates 
identified independent cashflows. If any indication of 
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets 
is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying 
amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value 
less costs of disposal and their value in use. Value in 
use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to 
their present value based on an appropriate discount 
factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss 
recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no 
longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions 
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

2.4	 Investments and other financial assets
	 a.	 Classification

	 The company classifies its financial assets in the 
following measurement categories:

zz those to be measured subsequently at fair 
value (either through other comprehensive 
income, or through profit or loss), and

zz those measured at amortised cost.

	 The classification depends on the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses 
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt 
instruments, this will depend on the business model 
in which the investment is held. 

	 The company reclassifies debt investments when 
and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.

	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual 
cash flows where those cash flows represent sole 
payment of principal and interest are measured at 
amortised cost.

	 Investments in mutual funds are primarily held for the 
Company's cash requirements and can be readily 
convertible in cash. These investments are initially 
recognised at fair value and carried at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

	 b.	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair 
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial asset (other 
than financial asset at fair value through Profit or 
Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets, as appropriate on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through 
the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised 
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 c.	 Subsequent measurement

	 All recognised financial assets are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or 
‘fair value through profit or loss’ or ‘fair value through 
other comprehensive income’, depending on the 
classification of the financial asset.

	 d.	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The company assesses on a forward looking 
basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk. For 
trade receivables, except for specifically identified 
cases, Company follow a simplified approach 
where provision is made as per the ageing buckets 
which are designed based on historical facts 
and patterns. For security deposits placed with 
government authorities, the company recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting 
from all possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference 
between all contractual cash flows that are due 
to the Company in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the company expects to 
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR.

	 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) 
recognized during the period is recognized as 
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss 
(P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other 
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation 
for various financial instruments is described below:

zz Financial assets measured as at amortised 
cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., 
as an integral part of the measurement of those 
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance 
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the 
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from 
the gross carrying amount.

		  For assessing increase in credit risk and 
impairment loss, the Company combines 
financial instruments on the basis of shared 
credit risk characteristics with the objective 
of facilitating an analysis that is designed to 
enable significant increases in credit risk to be 
identified on a timely basis.

	 e.	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 A financial asset is derecognised only when

zz The Company has transferred the rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial asset or

zz retains the contractual rights to receive the 
cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes 
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows 
to one or more recipients.

	 Where the company has transferred an asset, 
the Company evaluates whether it has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial 
asset is derecognised. Where the company has 
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset 
is not derecognised.

	 Where the company has neither transferred a 
financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the 
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financial asset is derecognised if the Company has 
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Company retains control of the financial asset, the 
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

2.4.1	Cash and cash equivalents 
	 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash 

flows, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, cash in transit and short term deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.5	 Financial Liabilities
	 a.	 Classification as debt or equity

	 Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are 
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument.

	 b.	 Measurement

	 Financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value 
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using effective interest method or at FVTPL

	 c.	 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at 
amortised cost

	 Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and 
are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at 
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting 
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities 
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
are determined based on the effective interest 
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as 
part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance 
costs' line item.

	 The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant 
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees and points paid or received that 
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or 
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 d.	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Company derecognises financial liabilities 
when, and only when, the Company's obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An 
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments 
with substantially different terms is accounted for as 
an extinguishment of the original financial liability 
and the recognition of a new financial liability. 
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an 
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable 
to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted 
for as an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new financial 
liability. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability derecognised and 
the consideration paid and payable is recognised 
in profit or loss.

	 e.	 Trade and other payables

	 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and 
services received by the Company prior to the end 
of reporting period which are unpaid. Trade and 
other payables are presented as current liabilities 
unless payment is not due within 12 months after 
the reporting period. They are recognised initially 
at their fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.6	 Offsetting financial instruments
	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 

amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7	 Inventories 
	 Stock of gas is valued at lower of cost computed on First In 

First Out (FIFO) basis and estimated net realisable value.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

	 Inventories other than stock of gas are valued at cost, 
which is determined on weighted average net off 
provision for cost of obsolescence / slow moving inventory 
and other anticipated losses, wherever considered  
necessary.

	 Cost of inventories includes all other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. 
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2.8	 Revenue from contracts with customers 
	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when 

control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services.

	 The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from 
contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.18

	 The Company earns revenues primarily from sale of 
natural gas. Revenue is recognised on supply of gas to 
customers by metered/assessed measurements. The 
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all its 
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all 
the revenue arrangements as it has the pricing latitude and 
is also exposed to credit risk.

	 Based on the Educational Material issued by the ICAI, the 
company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows 
to the company on its own account. This is for the reason 
that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of 
the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods 
are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to 
the company on its own account, revenue includes excise 
duty. 

	 However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) / Goods and 
Service Tax (GST) is not received by the company on its 
own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to 
the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. 
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, inclusive of excise duty. Amounts 
disclosed as revenue are net of trade allowances, rebates, 
value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of 
third parties.

	 Compensation receivable from customers with respect to 
shortfall in minimum guaranteed offtake of gas is recognised on 
contractual basis. Delayed payment charges are recognised 
on receipt basis in view of uncertainty of collection.

2.9	 Interest and Dividend income 
	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when 

it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable.

	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the 
right to receive dividend has been established.

2.10	 Foreign currencies
	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 

functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. At the end of each reporting 
period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates 
prevailing at the reporting date.

	 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment 
to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit 
and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange 
gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit 
and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

2.11	Income tax
	 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for 

the year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before tax" as 
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items 
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. 
The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. Income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities.

	 Current Tax
	 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of 

the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of 
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred Tax
	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability 

method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined 
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to 
utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities 
are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right 
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of 
profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.12	Leases
	 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) 

a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, 
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is 
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.		

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to Company as 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit and 
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease 
unless the payments are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s 
expected inflationary cost increases.	 .

2.13	Borrowing costs
	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for 
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use or sale.

	 Investment income earned on the temporary investment 
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.

	 All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

2.14	Provisions
	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation and the amount can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses.

	 Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 
period. The discount rate used to determine the present 
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.15	 Employee benefits
	 a.	 Short-term obligations

	 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including other 
monetary and non-monetary benefits that are 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period are recognised and 
measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled.

	 b.	 Post-employment obligations (Defined Benefit 
Obligations)

	 The Company operates the following post-
employment schemes:

zz defined benefit plans - gratuity and post-
retirement medical benefit scheme

zz defined contribution plans such as provident 
fund.

	 Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity obligations and post-
retirement medical benefit obligations

	 The liability or asset recognised in the balance 
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method.

	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows by reference to market yields at the end 
of the reporting period on government bonds that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. 

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This 
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains 
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and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised 
in the period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in 
equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss as past service cost.

	 Compensated absences
	 The Company’s liabilities under for long term compensated 

absences is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation 
made at the end of each financial year using the projected 
unit credit method except for short term compensated 
absences which are provided for based on estimates. The 
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end 
of the reporting period that gave terms approximating to 
the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a 
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Defined contribution plans
	 Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly 

administered provident funds and National Pension 
Scheme(NPS) as per local regulations. Company’s 
contribution to provident fund and NPS is recognised on 
accrual basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Company 
has no further payment obligations once the contributions 
have been paid.

	 c.	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

	 The liabilities for long service awards and 
compensated absences which are not expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period are measured at the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in 
respect of services provided by employees up to 
the end of the reporting period, using the projected 
unit credit method. Re-measurements as a result of 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss.

2.16	 Segment reporting
	 The board of directors assesses performance of the 

Company as Chief Operating Decision Maker. 

	 The Company has a single operating segment that is 
“Sale of Natural Gas”. Accordingly, the segment revenue, 
segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are 
reflected in the financial statements themselves as at and 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

2.17	 Earnings per share
	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

profit after tax before other comprehensive income by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the financial year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent 
shares outstanding during the year, except where the 
results would be anti dilutive.

2.18	 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of 
estimation uncertainty

	 In the application of the Company's accounting policies, 
which are described in note 2, the management of the 
Company are required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.

	 In the following areas the management of the Company 
has made critical judgements and estimates 

	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
	 The Company reviews the useful lives and carrying amount 

of property, plant and equipment at the end of each 
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change 
in depreciation expense in future periods.

	 Estimation of defined benefit obligation
	 The company has defined benefit plans for its employees 

which are actuarially valued. Such valuation is based 
on many estimates and other factors, which may have a 
scope of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities.

	 Recognition of deferred tax assets
	 Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible 

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The 
management assumes that taxable profits will be available 
while recognising deferred tax assets.
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	 Provision on receivables
	 The Company has a defined policy for provision of 

receivables which is based on the ageing of receivables. 
The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals.

	 Recognition and measurement of other provisions
	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are 

based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow 
of resources and on past experience and circumstances 
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of 
resources at a future date may therefore vary from the 
figure so provided and included as liability.

	 Recognition and measurement of unbilled gas sales 
revenue

	 In case of customers where meter reading dates for billing 
is not matching with reporting date, the gas sales between 
last meter reading date and reporting date has been 
accrued by the company based on past average sales. 
The actual sales revenue may vary compared to accrued 
unbilled revenue so included in Sale of natural gas and 
classified under current financial assets.

2.19	Fair Value Measurements
	 The Company measures financial instruments such as 

derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The 
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either:

	 (a)	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

	 (b)	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 

use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

zz Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the company can access at the measurement date;

zz Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices 
included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

zz Level 3- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for 
the asset or liability.

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the company determines 
whether transfer have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in 
these financial information is determined on such a basis, 
except for share-based payment transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that 
are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that 
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, 
such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in 
Ind AS 36.

2.20	Changes in accounting policies and disclosures - 
New and amended standards

	 Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 
mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 
1, 2018, replaces earlier revenue recognition requirements.
Under the modified retrospective approach there were no 
adjustments required to the retained earnings at April 1, 
2018. Also, the application of Ind AS 115 does not have 
any significant impact on recognition and measurement of 
revenue and related items in the financial results.

	 Several other amendments and interpretations apply for 
the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact 
on the financial statements of the Company. The Company 
has not early adopted any standards or amendments that 
have been issued but are not yet effective.

2.21	Recent accounting pronouncements - Standards 
issued but not yet effective:

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 amending the following standard.
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	 Ind AS 116 Leases
	 Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 

2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including 
appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees 
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet 
model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind 
AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions 
for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal 
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease 
term of 12 months or less). 

	 At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will 
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the 
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the 
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use 
asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the 
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation 
expense on the right-of-use asset.

	 Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability 
upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in 
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting 
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those 
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount 
of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment 
to the right-of-use asset. 

	 Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially 
unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. 
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same 
classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish 
between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

	� The Company will implement Ind AS 116 from 1 April 
2019 by applying the modified retrospective approach, 
meaning that the comparative figures in the financial 
statements for the year ending 31st March 2019 will not 
be restated to show the impact of Ind AS 116.

	 The operating leases which will be recorded on the 
balance sheet following implementation of Ind AS 116 are 
principally in respect of office premises, leasehold land, 
warehouses, plant and machinery, vehicles and other 
identified assets representing right to use as per contracts 
excluding low value assets and short term leases of 12 
months or less.

	 The anticipated impact of the standard on the company is 
not yet known though is not expected to be material on the 
income statement or net assets though assets and liabilities 
will be grossed up for the net present value of the outstanding 
operating lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019. See note 
31.5 for information on operating lease commitments.

	 Amendments to Ind AS 19 : Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement

	 The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when 
a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during 
a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a 
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the 
annual reporting period, an entity is required to:

zz Determine current service cost for the remainder of 
the period after the plan amendment, curtailment 
or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used 
to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the 
plan assets after that event

zz Determine net interest for the remainder of the 
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement using: the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan 
and the plan assets after that event; and the discount 
rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit 
liability (asset).

	 The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines 
any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, 
without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This 
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

	 An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling 
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any 
change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the 
net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income.

	 The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, 
or settlements occurring on or after the beginning of the 
first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 April 
2019. These amendments will apply only to any future plan 
amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Company.

	 Amendments to Ind AS 12: Income Taxes
	 The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences 

of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions 
or events that generated distributable profits than to 
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the 
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, 
other comprehensive income or equity according to where 
the entity originally recognised those past transactions or 
events.

	 An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Since 
the Company’s current practice is in line with these 
amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on 
its financial statements.
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4.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019

As at  
31st March 2018 

(a)	 Current

	 Secured, Considered Good (secured against security deposits)  2,621.72  1,704.14 

	 Unsecured, Considered Good #  7,331.39  7,142.76 

	 With significant increase in credit risk  -   -   

	 Unsecured, Considered doubtful  243.04  245.87 

 10,196.15  9,092.77 

	 Less : Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables  243.04  245.87 

 9,953.11  8,846.90 

(b)	 Non-current

	 Unsecured Considered Good  6.32  20.47 

Total - Trade Receivables (a+b)  9,959.43  8,867.37 

# Includes `0.88 Lakh (Previous year `3.54 Lakh) receivable from related parties (refer note 31.3)

5.	 SECURITY DEPOSITS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019

As at  
31st March 2018 

(a)	 Current

	 Unsecured, Considered Good #  859.63  1,552.24 

	 Unsecured, Considered doubtful  363.18  148.20 

 1,222.81  1,700.44 

	 Less: Expected credit loss allowance for Security Deposits  363.18  148.20 

	 Subtotal (a)  859.63  1,552.24 

(b)	 Non-current

	 Unsecured, Considered Good  1,921.37  1,774.95 

	 Unsecured, Considered doubtful  344.07  -   

 2,265.44  1,774.95 

	 Less: Expected credit loss allowance for Security Deposits  344.07  -   

	 Subtotal (b)  1,921.37  1,774.95 

Total - Security Deposits (a+b)  2,781.00  3,327.19

# Includes `6.00 Lakh (Previous year `6.00 Lakh) receivable from related parties (refer note 31.3)			 
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6.	 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS			

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019

As at  
31st March 2018 

Other Bank Balances #  26.58  2,506.67 
Other Loans and Advances  9.17  9.85 

 35.75  2,516.52
 
# includes margin money deposit `26.58 Lakh (previous year `4.29 Lakh)			 
			 
7.	 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019

As at  
31st March 2018 

Capital Advances  19.19  51.74 
Prepaid Rent on Leasehold Land  6,493.14  6,732.37 
Prepaid Expenses  1,368.41  1,121.00 

 7,880.74  7,905.11 
			 
8.	 INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE)			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019

As at  
31st March 2018 

Stock in Trade:

Stock of Natural Gas  49.03  38.61 

Stores and Spares  1,862.76  2,361.25 

 1,911.79  2,399.86
 
Stores and Spares in Transit is `Nil
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9.	 INVESTMENTS					   
a.	 Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss					   

Name of Mutual Fund Scheme (Unquoted) Face Value 
(`)

Number of Units Amount (` in Lakh)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily 
Dividend

 100  1,672,437 10,006,127  1,676.47  10,033.35 

Axis Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Growth 1,000 141,738  -    2,508.19  -   
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Dly Dividend 1,000 2,500 706,271  25.02  7,072.59 
DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend  1,000  1,005,799  -    10,067.37  -   
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund-Growth - DIRECT PLAN  100  1,845,040  1,855,199  6,663.71  6,183.70 
IDBI Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend - 
Reinvestment

 10  -    868,916  -    8,734.94 

KOTAK EQUITY ARBITRAGE FUND - DIRECT PLAN-
MONTHLY DIVIDEND

 10 11,375,115  -    1,252.13  -   

Kotak Low Duration Fund - Standard Growth 
(Regular Plan)

 1,000  308,948  308,948  7,063.85  6,559.35 

Kotak Money Market Scheme - Daily Dividend - 
Direct Plan

 1,000  -    28,304  -    286.33 

L&T Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend 
Reinvestment

 1,000  -    759,601  -    7,689.97 

Reliance Arbitrage Fund - Direct Monthly Dividend Plan  10 20,928,899  -    2,301.51  -   
Reliance Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend  1,000  278,661  -    4,261.71  -   
Reliance Prime Debt Fund - Growth Plan -Growth Option  10 16,748,485 18,112,581  6,554.74  6,600.32 
TATA Liquid Fund -Direct Plan- Daily Dividend  1,000  999,625  -    10,011.44  -   
Total Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)  52,386.14  53,160.55

b.	 Carried at Amortised Cost					   

(` in Lakh)
Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Fixed Deposit with LIC Housing Finance Ltd.  5,408.00  7,750.66 
Fixed Deposit with HDFC Ltd.  7,607.51  7,857.21 
Total of Corporate FDs  13,015.51  15,607.87 

Grand Total (a+b) (Unquoted Investments)  65,401.65  68,768.42 

10.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at  

31st March 2019 
As at  

31st March 2018

Cash on Hand  1.48  1.27 
Cash in Transit  431.04  388.90 
Balances with Banks
 - in Current Accounts  2,220.60  1,111.37 
Total - Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer Cash Flow Statement)  2,653.12  1,501.54
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11.	 OTHER BANK BALANCES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

In Deposit Accounts  26,004.08  7,555.45 

Margin Money Deposits  117.46  130.84 

In Dividend Accounts  1,109.36  -   

 27,230.90  7,686.29
 			 

12.	 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Unbilled Revenue  3,854.29  3,144.16 

Current Accounts (earmarked against expenses payable towards IPO)  -    1,200.03 

Others #  3,895.03  735.70 

 7,749.32  5,079.89

# Includes `0.08 Lakh (Previous year `0.14 Lakh) receivable from related parties (refer note 31.3)			 
			 
13.	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Prepaid Expenses  760.11  964.64 

Balances with Government Authorities (Central Excise, GST, VAT, etc.)  987.80  680.21 

Advances to Employees / Vendors  79.39  69.93 

 1,827.30  1,714.78

14.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Authorised Equity Share Capital

13,00,00,000 (previous year 13,00,00,000) Equity Shares of `10/- each  13,000.00  13,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Equity Shares 

9,87,77,778 (previous year 9,87,77,778) Equity Shares of `10/- each  9,877.78  9,877.78
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	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares :
	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value at `10 per share, each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.					   

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares

GAIL (India) Limited 

Number of Shares  3,21,02,750  3,21,02,750 

Percentage  32.50  32.50 

BG Asia Pacific Holding Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Number of Shares  98,77,778  3,21,02,710 

Percentage  10.00  32.50 

Government of Maharashtra

Number of Shares  98,77,778  98,77,778 

Percentage  10.00  10.00

15.	 OTHER EQUITY 			

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

General Reserve  21,183.81  21,183.81 

Retained Earnings  2,08,825.42  1,78,473.04 

 2,30,009.23  1,99,656.85

16.	 BORROWINGS (UNSECURED - AT AMORTISED COST)			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Deferred Payment Liabilities :

Interest Free Sales Tax Deferred Loan #  -    119.51 

 -    119.51 

# Sales tax deferment is in respect of Sales Tax collected for the period 1996-97 to 2000-01. The same is being repaid in 6 equal 
annual instalments on 1st April every year starting from the 14th year from the year of availment of the Loan.
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17.	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Security Deposits  180.88  85.94 

 180.88  85.94 

18.	 PROVISIONS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

a.	 Current (refer note 31.1)

	 Leave Encashment  487.89  410.98 

	 Post Retirement Medical Benefit  2.03  2.31 

	 Gratuity  180.45  82.64 

	 Other Employee Benefits Obligations  17.99  18.41 

Total (a)  688.36  514.34 

b.	 Non-current (refer note 31.1)

	 Leave Encashment  928.44  797.53 

	 Post Retirement Medical Benefit  378.58  515.98 

	 Other Employee Benefits Obligations  124.10  161.68 

Total (b)  1,431.12  1,475.19 

Total Provisions (a+b)  2,119.48  1,989.53

19.	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITES (NET) (REFER NOTE 31.6)			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Deferred Tax Liabilities  21,463.86  18,463.24 

Less : Deferred Tax Assets  979.99  980.30 

 20,483.87  17,482.94 
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20.	 TRADE PAYABLES			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (refer note 31.10)  647.47  347.88 

Other Trade Payables  7,643.02  7,242.26 

 8,290.49  7,590.14 

To Related Parties (Refer note 31.3)  6,954.38  3,412.55 

 15,244.87  11,002.69 

21.	 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Unpaid Dividends  1,109.36  -   

Payables in relation to IPO to related parties (Refer note 31.3)  -    1,327.80 

Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment  5,606.16  4,389.57 

Others  3,229.09  6,851.18 

 9,944.61  12,568.55 

22.	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES			 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31st March 2019 

As at  
31st March 2018

Statutory Payables  2,555.73  2,276.62 

Advances from Customers  1,813.55  1,567.02 

 4,369.28  3,843.64 

23.	 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (REFER NOTE 31.13) 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Sale of Natural Gas (Including Excise Duty)  3,03,126.77  2,43,309.15 

Sale of Pipes, Fittings and Other Materials  524.28  450.75 

Other Operating Income  2,028.29  1,531.84 

 3,05,679.34  2,45,291.74 
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24.	 OTHER INCOME				  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

a.	 Interest Income

	 From Bank Deposits  1,667.57  684.94 

	 From Other Financials Assets  1,007.37  764.38 

 2,674.94  1,449.32 

b.	 Dividend Income

	 From Mutual Funds designated at FVTPL  1,952.64  1,889.84 

c.	 Other Gains and Losses

	 Gain/(Loss) on Debt Instruments designated at FVTPL *  1,460.52  1,071.05 

 1,460.52  1,071.05 

d.	 Other Non-operating Income  1,683.15  1,357.85 

Total Other Income (a+b+c+d)  7,771.25  5,768.06

* Includes unrealised increase in fair value of `1,444.28 lakh (previous year - `1,045.81 lakh)				 

25.	 COST OF NATURAL GAS AND TRADED ITEMS	

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Purchase Cost of Natural Gas and Other Charges  1,39,754.09  1,02,708.85 

Less: Captive Consumption (Including VAT)  279.43  170.14 

 1,39,474.66  1,02,538.71 

Purchase of Pipes, Fittings and Other Materials  451.76  377.53 

 1,39,926.42  1,02,916.24 

26.	 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES				  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Changes in Stock of Natural Gas:

Opening Stock  38.61  33.92 

Closing Stock  49.03  38.61 

(Increase) / Decrease in Stock  (10.42)  (4.69)
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27.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Salaries, Wages and Allowances  8,062.84  7,492.14 
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds (Refer note 31.1)  391.13  357.46 
Gratuity (Refer note 31.1)  121.59  180.52 
Staff Welfare  406.67  346.12 
Secondment Charges  204.51  349.07 

 9,186.74  8,725.31 
Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress  2,098.84  2,023.64 

 7,087.90  6,701.67

28.	 FINANCE COSTS

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Other Interest Expense  32.28  9.04 
 32.28  9.04 

29.	 OTHER EXPENSES

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Power and Fuel  11,622.39  10,491.46 
CNG Dispensing Charges  5,648.44  3,189.45 
Consumption of Stores and Spares  3,388.24  2,685.97 
Insurance  246.85  203.84 
Rent Expense (refer note 31.5)  2,859.90  2,479.28 
Rates and Taxes  276.51  249.22 
Repairs to Buildings  2.54  7.85 
Repairs to Plant and Machinery  6,459.76  5,697.69 
Write off and Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  421.66  249.21 
Bad Trade Receivables Written Off  62.81  10.07 
Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (Net)  -    18.09 
Security Deposits Written off  53.11  31.93 
Expected credit loss allowance for Security Deposits (Net)  559.04  92.70 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer Note 31.12)  576.48  294.27 
Miscellaneous Expenses  12,050.02  10,662.45 

 44,227.75  36,363.48 
Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress  669.63  686.77 

 43,558.12  35,676.71
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30.	 OCI - ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS			 
	

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2019

For the year ended 
31st March 2018

Gains/(Losses) on Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans  192.51  159.01 

Less : Income Tax on Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans  67.27  56.31 

OCI - Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (Net of Income Tax)  125.24  102.70 

31	 DISCLOSURES UNDER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:
31.1 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS	

	 a.	 Short-term Employee Benefits

	 These benefits include wages and salaries, including other monetary and non-monetary benefits, compensated absences 
which are either non-accumulating or accumulated and expected to be availed within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period.

	 b.	 Long-term Employee Benefits

	 i)	 Defined Contribution Plans

		  The Company makes Provident Fund and National Pension Scheme (NPS) contributions, which are defined 
contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions 
have been paid. Under the Provident Fund Schemes and NPS , the Company is required to contribute a specified 
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company 
are in compliance with the rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The Company recognised `391.13 Lakh 
(previous year `357.46 Lakh) as an expense and included in Note 27 – Employee Benefit Expenses ‘Contribution 
to Provident Fund and Other Funds’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019.

	 ii)	 Defined Benefit Plans

		  The Company offers the following defined benefit schemes to its employees:

		  -	 Gratuity (refer note 27): The Company’s gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under 
the Act, Employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit, the plan is funded.

		  -	 Post-Retirement Medical Benefit Plan (PRMB) (refer note 27)

		  The following table sets out the funded/unfunded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised 
in the financial statements: 

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(` in Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended  

March 31, 2019 
For the year ended  
March 31, 2018

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)
Current Service Cost 115.09 76.36 108.14 75.75
Interest Cost (Net) 6.50 40.74 19.26 37.31
Past Service Cost - - 53.12 -
Total Expense recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss

121.59 117.10 180.52 113.06
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2019 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2018

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)

Due to change in Demographic 
Assumptions

60.01 (182.62) - -

Due to change in Financial 
Assumptions

38.49 15.50 (1.39) (12.80)

Due to Experience (40.82) (85.63) (51.87) (75.81)

Return on Plan Assets (excluding 
amounts included in net interest 
expense)

2.56 - (17.14) -

Total Remeasurement (gains)/losses 
recognised in OCI

60.24 (252.75) (70.40) (88.61)

Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)

Present value of Defined Benefit 
Obligation 

(1,562.54) (380.61) (1,357.62) (518.29)

Fair value of Plan Assets 1,382.09 - 1,274.98 -

Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in 
the Balance Sheet

(180.45) (380.61) (82.64) (518.29)

Change in defined obligation (DBO) during the year 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)

Present value of DBO at beginning 1,357.62 518.29 1,235.58 496.13

Current Service Cost 115.09 76.36 108.14 75.75

Past Service Cost - - 53.12 -

Interest Cost 106.71 40.74 92.92 37.31

Remeasurement (gain)/loss 57.68 (252.75) (53.26) (88.61)

Benefits paid (74.56) (2.03) (78.88) (2.29)

Present value of DBO at the end 1,562.54 380.61 1,357.62 518.29
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Change in the fair value of Asset during the year – Gratuity (Funded) 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Plan Assets at beginning 1,274.98 979.49

Interest Income 100.21 73.66

Return on Plan Assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (2.56) 17.14

Employer contribution 84.02 283.57

Benefits paid (74.56) (78.88)

Plan Assets as at the end $ 1,382.09 1,274.98

Actual return on Plan Assets 97.65 90.80

$ Category-wise composition of the plan assets is not available with the Company, since the fund is managed by LIC.

Principal Actuarial assumptions

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)

Discount rate 7.54% 7.54% 7.86% 7.86%

Expected rate of escalation in salary 7.50% NA 7.50% NA

Attrition 6.00% 6.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Medical Cost Inflation NA 3.00% NA 3.00%

Mortality tables Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate

Estimate of amount of contribution in 
the immediate next year ( ` Lakh)

241.30 NA 197.74 NA

Maturity analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

Gratuity (Funded) PRMB (Unfunded)

1st Following Year 111.72 2.21

2nd Following Year 104.60 2.21

3rd Following Year 130.63 10.73

4th Following Year 149.68 21.16

5th Following Year 127.42 12.36

Sum of Years 6 To 10 760.46 96.25

	 These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: 

	 Investment risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference 
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it 
will create a plan deficit. 
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	 Interest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an 
increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

	 Demographic risk - This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward 
and depends upon the combination of salary increase, medical cost inflation, discount rate and vesting criteria.

	 Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. The expected rate of 
return on plan assets is determined after considering several applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets, 
investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

	 In order to protect the capital and optimise returns within acceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are well diversified. 
The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other 
relevant factors.

	 Sensitivity
	 Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Change in 
Assumption

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Increased by Decreased by Increased by Decreased by

Discount rate +/- 1% 223.93 184.89 298.95 241.65

Expected rate of escalation in salary +/- 1% 92.05 93.11 172.47 148.12

Attrition rate +/- 1% 201.10 200.39 281.27 279.47

Medical Cost Inflation +/- 1% 97.48 74.27 132.77 101.15

	 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the 
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

	 There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

	 iii)	 Other Long-term Employee Benefits

		  Compensated absences which are accumulated and not expected to be availed within twelve months after 
the end of the reporting period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability 
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date. Long Service Awards are 
recognised as a liability based on actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance  
sheet date.

		  An amount of `323.01 Lakh (previous year `209.26 Lakh) and `(14.63) Lakh (previous year `12.55 Lakh) has 
been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss towards Compensated absences and Long service awards 
respectively.
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Actuarial assumptions for long-term compensated absences

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Discount rate 7.54% 7.86%

Salary escalation 7.50% 7.50%

Attrition 6.00% 2.00%

	 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for 
the estimated term of the obligations.

	 NA : Not Applicable

31.2	SEGMENT INFORMATION
	 a.	 Description of segments and principal activities

	 The Company has a single operating segment that is “Sale of Natural Gas”. Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment 
results, segment assets and segment liabilities are reflected by the financial statements themselves as at and for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2019.

	 b.	 Entity wide disclosures

	 Information about products and services: 

	 The Company is in a single line of business of “Sale of Natural Gas”.

	 Geographical Information: 

	 The company operates presently in the business of city gas distribution in India. Accordingly, revenue from customers 
earned and non-current asset are located, in India.

	 Information about major customers: 

	 Three customers during the year ended March 31, 2019 and three customers during the year ended March 31, 2018 
contributed to more than 10% of the revenue individually. Revenue from these customers is `1,30,425.10 Lakh (previous 
year `1,11,488.44 Lakh).

31.3	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	 GAIL (India) Limited (GAIL) has a significant influence on the Company. BG Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Limited (BGAPHPL) had 

a significant holding till 23rd August 2018 on which date its shareholding reduced to 10%.

	 Details of transactions with related entities (including entities transacting on behalf of related entities), in ordinary course of business:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Purchase of Natural Gas (from GAIL) 1,25,625.68 1,02,230.45
Secondment Charges (also included in KMPs’ remuneration, refer table below) 204.51 359.75
Expense incurred and recovered / recoverable (relates to IPO) 18.34 14.12
Refundable Security Deposit given/received - 4.00
Other Expense 37.24 5.71
Capital Expense 94.61 -
Other Income (subsidiary/Joint Ventures of GAIL) 0.88 14.65
Remitence of IPO proceeds to promotors 649.16 -
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	 Following is the list of Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs’) as per Ind AS 24:

	 a.	 Mr. Rajeev Mathur, Managing Director (upto 30th May 2018)

	 b.	 Mr. Sanjib Datta, Managing Director (from 30th May 2018)

	 c.	 Mr. Goutam Ghosh, Whole Time Director (from 20th November 2017 to 28th November 2018)

	 d.	 Ms. Susmita Sengupta, Whole Time Director (upto 6th November 2017)

	 e.	 Mr. Jainendar Kumar Jain, Independent Director (upto 4th March 2018)

	 f.	 Mr. Arun Balakrishnan, Independent Director

	 g.	 Mr. Santosh Kumar, Independent Director

	 h.	 Mr. Raj Kishore Tewari, Independent Director

	 i.	 Mrs. Radhika Haribhakti, Independent Director

	 j.	 Mr. Premesh Kumar Jain, Independent Director (from 9th April 2018)

	 k.	 Mr. Akhil Mehrotra (Non-Executive Chairman from 28th May 2017) - BGAPHPL Nominee #

	 l.	 Dr. Ashutosh Karnatak (Non-Executive Chairman upto 27th May, 2017) - GAIL Nominee #

	 m.	Mr. Virendra Nath Dutt (Non-Executive Director from 28th May 2017 to 25th October 2018) - GAIL Nominee #

	 n.	 Mr. Ashu Shinghal (Non-Executive Director from 2nd November 2018 to 28th November 2018) - GAIL Nominee #

# No remuneration paid to nominee directors.

Details of KMPs’ remuneration including directors sitting fee:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Short Term Employee Benefits (including secondment charges paid to related 
entities)

272.55 427.97

Outstanding balance with related entities having significant influence on the Company:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Trade Payables # 6,954.38 3,412.55
Trade Receivables 0.88 3.54
IPO related Payables - 1,327.80
Other Financial Assets 0.08 0.14
Security Deposits (Receivable) 6.00 6.00

# Mainly on account of gas purchases (secured by Stand by Letter of Credit) to be settled as per contract within 4 days, from receipt 
of invoices, being general terms of payment for such transactions.
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31.4	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS):
	 The Company has various financial assets and liabilities. The disclosures regarding the classification, fair value hierarchy, 

capital management, markets risk, credit risks and liquidity risks are as follows: 

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Note As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

A.	 Financial Assets

	 I.	 Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

		  (i)	 Investments 9 52,386.14 53,160.55 

	 II.	 Measured at Amortised Cost 

		  (i)	 Corporate Fixed Deposits 9 13,015.51 15,607.87 

		  (ii)	 Trade Receivables 4 9,959.43 8,867.37 

		  (iii)	Security Deposits 5 2,781.00 3,327.19 

		  (iv)	Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 2,653.12 1,501.54 

		  (v)	 Bank balances other than (iv) above 11 27,230.90 7,686.29 

		  (vi)	Other Financial Assets 6,12 7,785.07 7,596.41 

Total (A)  1,15,811.17 97,747.22 

B.	 Financial Liabilities 

	 I.	 Measured at Amortised Cost 

		  (i)	 Borrowings 16            -   119.51 

		  (ii)	 Trade Payables 20 15,244.87 11,002.69 

		  (iii)	Security Deposits  51,972.55 44,401.33 

		  (iv)	Other Financial Liabilities 17,21 9,944.61 12,568.55 

Total (B)  77,162.03 68,092.08 

	 a.	 Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Liabilities

	 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are 
(i) recognised and measured at fair value and (ii) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the 
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Company has 
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standards below:

	 Level 1: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company 
can access at the measurement date. 

	 Level 2: Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. 

	 Level 3: Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

	 Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting 
period.
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	 (i)	 Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

		  The company has investments in debt mutual funds which are not quoted in the active market. These debt mutual 
funds are subsequently measured at FVTPL as per the closing NAV statement provided by the mutual fund house. 
The corresponding unrealized gain or loss on fair valuation is recorded in profit and loss account under other 
income. Accordingly, such debt mutual funds fall under fair value hierarchy level 2. The fair value of these mutual 
funds as at March 31, 2019 is ` 52,386.14 Lakh (previous year ` 53,160.55 Lakh).

	 (ii)	 Measured at Amortised Cost for which Fair Value is disclosed

	 	 The fair values of all current financial assets and liabilities including trade receivables and unbilled revenue, cash 
and cash equivalents, bank balances, bank fixed deposits, corporate fixed deposits, security deposits, trade 
payables, Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment and other current financial assets and liabilities 
are considered to be the same as their carrying values, due to their short term nature. The fair values of all non-
current financial assets and liabilities including security deposits, trade receivables and borrowings and other 
non-current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their carrying values, as the impact of 
fair valuation is not material.

	 b.	 Capital Management

	 Total equity as shown in the balance sheet includes equity share capital, general reserves and retained earnings.

	 The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 
optimise returns to its shareholders. 

	 The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain 
investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company 
will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the 
return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders.

	 The Company does not have any borrowing, sales tax deferred loan has been paid off during the year.

	 c.	 Financial risk management

	 Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the 
company is exposed to and how the company manages the risk and its impact on the financial statements. 

	 (i)	 Credit Risk

		  Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Company. The credit risk arises from trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 
deposits with banks and corporates.

		  Trade receivables

		  The company supplies natural gas to customers.

		  Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited as majority credit sales are made to high 
credit worthy entities and balance credit sales are against securities in the form of customer security deposits, bank 
guarantees and letter of credit. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on regular basis. Our 
historical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, is that credit risk is low.

		  For trade receivables, except for specifically identified cases, Company follows a simplified approach where 
provision is made as per the ageing buckets which are designed based on historical facts and patterns. 
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Age of receivables as on March 31, 2019

(` in Lakh)

Ageing Within the 
Credit Period

Upto 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

Above 1 year Total

Gross Amount 8,513.64 1,347.82 78.45 262.56 10,202.47

Allowance for bad receivables - (0.53) - (242.51) (243.04)

Net Trade receivables 8,513.64 1,347.29 78.45 20.05 9,959.43

Age of receivables as on March 31, 2018

(` in Lakh)

Ageing Within the 
Credit Period

Upto 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

Above 1 year Total

Gross Amount 6,326.54 2,163.21 366.71 256.78 9,113.24

Allowance for bad receivables - - (2.52) (243.35) (245.87)

Net Trade receivables 6,326.54 2,163.21 364.19 13.43 8,867.37

Reconciliation of loss allowance

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Amount 

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2018 245.87

Changes in loss allowance (2.83)

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2019 243.04

		  Other financial assets

		  The Company maintains exposure in security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks 
and corporates.

		  In case of security deposits, majority of which are given to Municipal authorities (which are government controlled 
entities) towards pipeline laying activity, the credit risk is low. However, historically the company has experienced 
a delay/ non receipt of these amounts and hence allowances have been taken into account for the expected 
credit losses of these security deposits.

		  In case of bank /corporate fixed deposits regular quotations for interest rates are invited and based on best offered 
rate the bank deposits are placed with banks/corporates having reasonably high net worth. Exposures of deposit 
placed are restricted to limits per bank/corporate as per policy and limits are actively monitored by the Company. 
We understand that the credit risk is very low to moderate for such deposits.

		  The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of each class of financial assets as disclosed 
in note 4,5,6,9,10,11 and 12.
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	 (ii)	 Liquidity Risk

		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will find it difficult in meeting its obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities on time. 

		  Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close 
out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company’s treasury maintains flexibility 
in funding by maintaining availability under cash and cash equivalents, bank fixed deposits, corporate fixed 
deposits and mutual funds. 

		  Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the 
basis of expected cash flows.

		  The tables below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturities.

As at March 31, 2019

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings -   -   -   

Trade Payables 15,244.87 -   15,244.87 

Security Deposits 51,791.67 180.88   51,972.55 

Others 9,944.61 - 9,944.61 

Total 76,981.15 180.88 77,162.03 

As at March 31, 2018

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings -   119.51 119.51 

Trade Payables 11,002.69 -   11,002.69 

Security Deposits 44,315.39 85.94 44,401.33 

Others 12,568.55 - 12,568.55 

Total 67,886.63 205.45 68,092.08 

	 (iii)	  Market Risk

		  Foreign Exchange Risk

		  Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from direct transactions in foreign currency and also indirectly 
through transactions denominated in foreign currency though settled in functional currency (INR), primarily with 
respect to the US Dollar (USD). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised 
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). 

		  The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. As per the risk management 
policy, the foreign currency exposure is unhedged however managed partially through natural hedge under gas 
sales contracts and balance through adjustment in sales prices.
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The table below shows the unhedged currency exposure of financial liabilities:

Particulars Currency As on  
March 31, 2019

As on  
March 31, 2018

Forex ` in Lakh Forex ` in Lakh

Secondment Expenses GBP - - 5,34,703.00 493.45

Capital Imports USD 2,00,936.78 138.99 2,11,755.83 137.73

Capital Imports EUR 29,450.00 22.88 39,805.00 32.09

Import of Goods & Services USD 30,791.00 21.30 30,791.00 20.03

The sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in the exchange rates that arise from foreign currency denominated financial 
instruments mentioned above is as below:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

USD Sensitivity :
Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%

8.01
8.01

7.89
7.89

GBP Sensitivity :
Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%

-
-

24.67
24.67

EUR Sensitivity :
Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%

1.14
1.14

1.60
1.60

	 Interest Rate Risk:

	 There are no interest bearing borrowings and hence company is not exposed to interest rate risk presently.

	 The Company’s investments in fixed deposits with banks/corporates and liquid debt mutual funds are for short durations, and 
therefore do not expose the Company to significant interest rates risk.

31.5	OPERATING LEASES
	 The company has entered into various operating lease arrangements for hiring of vehicles, equipments and premises (land, 

residential, office and godown).

	 a.	 Rental Expenses relating to Operating Leases (refer note 29)

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Minimum Lease Payments 661.15 592.86

Others 2,198.75 1,886.42

Total Rent Expense 2,859.90 2,479.28
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	 b.	 The future minimum lease payments of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 605.96 422.30
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,201.41 658.23
Total 1,807.37 1,080.53

Operating leases relate to land with lease term of 17 to 116 years. The Company does not have an option to purchase at the end 
of the lease term.

31.6	 INCOME TAX
	 a.	 Components and movements of Deferred Tax Liability (Net):

(` in Lakh)
Particulars As at  

31st March 
2017 

(a)

Recognised to 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

(b)

Recognised 
in Statement 

of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
(c )

As at  
31st March 

2018 

(d=a+b+c)

Recognised to 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

(e)

Recognised 
in Statement 

of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
(f)

As at  
31st March 

2019 

(g=d+e+f)

i. Items of Deferred Tax Liabilities :

Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets

(14,272.60) (3,582.29) - (17,854.89) (2,587.34) - (20,442.23)

Financial Assets Fair Value through 
profit or loss

(384.75) (223.60) - (608.35) (413.28) - (1,021.63)

Total Deferred Tax Liability (i) (14,657.35) (3,805.89) - (18,463.24) (3,000.62) - (21,463.86)

ii. Items of Deferred Tax Assets :

Allowance for doubtful trade 
receivables and deposits

98.04 39.67 - 137.71 (52.70) - 85.01

Disallowances under Section 43B 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

747.08 77.46 (31.94) 792.60 140.72 (88.33) 844.99

Others 49.52 0.47 - 49.99 - - 49.99

Total Deferred Tax Assets (ii) 894.64 117.60 (31.94) 980.30 88.02 (88.33) 979.99

Net Deferred Tax Liability (i-ii) (13,762.71) (3,688.29) (31.94) (17,482.94) (2,912.60) (88.33) (20,483.87)

	 b.	 Components of Income Tax Expense		
(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Income Tax Expense   
i. Current Tax   
Current Tax on Profits for the year 26,139.71 21,175.81 
Total Current Tax (i) 26,139.71 21,175.81 
ii. Deferred Tax   
Decrease / (Increase) in Deferred Tax Assets (88.02) (117.60)
Increase / (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability 3,000.62 3,805.89 
Total Deferred Tax (ii) 2,912.60 3,688.29 
Total Income Tax Expense (i+ii) 29,052.31 24,864.10 
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	 b.	 Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense with Accounting Profit:		

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

i.	 Profit Before Tax 83,691.22  72,651.33 

ii.	 Tax at Indian Tax Rate 29,245.05 25,143.17 

iii.	 Tax effect of Permanent Differences:   

	 a.	 Due to impact of change in tax rates -   166.83 

	 b.	 Effect of exempt income (682.33) (654.04)

	 c.	 Effect of tax relating to prior periods (29.29) (9.29)

	 d.	 Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 518.88 217.43 

Total Tax effect of Permanent Differences (a+b+c) (192.74) (279.07)

iv. Income Tax Expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss (ii+iii) 29,052.31 24,864.10 

31.7	EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
	 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profits for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares as at the respective dates. The following data has 
been used for calculating basic and diluted EPS.

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

a)	 Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (` Lakh) 54,638.91 47,787.23

b)	 Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for basic and diluted EPS 9,87,77,778 9,87,77,778

c)	 EPS (`) [Basic and Diluted (a/b)] (Face value per share ` 10) 55.31 48.38
	

31.8	CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
	 a.	 Estimated amount of contracts to be executed for project execution including labour and purchase of material relating to 

construction of pipeline network and CNG outlets not provided for (net of advances) ` 24,863.75 Lakh (previous year 
`21,125.34 Lakh).

	 b.	 All term contracts for purchase of natural gas with suppliers, has contractual obligation of “take or pay” for shortfall 
in contracted Minimum Guaranteed Quantity (MGQ) as specified in individual contracts. Estimation of these MGQ 
commitments is dependent on nomination of quantity by suppliers and actual purchase by the company. As both the 
factors “quantity nomination by supplier” and “quantity to be purchased by the company”, are not predictable, MGQ 
commitment is not quantifiable.
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	 c.	 For lease commitments refer note 31.5

	 d.	 As per authorisation terms and conditions of the PNGRB for Raigad Geographical Area, the Company is required to 
meet Minimum Work Programme (MWP) targets by March 2020 (with reference to connections and pipeline inch Kilo 
Meters) and the Company had submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of `105.20 Crore dated March 19, 2015 to 
the PNGRB. Show cause notice dated July 23, 2018 was given by the PNGRB for shortfall in periodic MWP, asking 
the Company to explain why penalty should not be levied for the interim MWP target shortfall. The Company submitted 
catch up plan vide letter dated August 2, 2018 for meeting MWP target by March 2020 and reiterated host of 
factors beyond control of the Company causing a shortfall. No further written communication is received from PNGRB. 
The Company has achieved connection targets as per catch up plan up to 31st March 2019 and the progress on 
pipeline inch Kilo Meters is being expedited. The Company has received critical permissions from various authorities 
for laying pipelines as of April 2019. The management is of the view that it will be able to make substantial progress 
on the required work by March 31, 2020 and that the penalty can be avoided. Accordingly, no provision is deemed 
necessary in relation to the bank guarantee issued to the PNGRB at this stage.

31.9	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of which the Company does not expect outflow of 
resources `19,725.83 Lakh (previous year `16,978.03 Lakh), includes:

	 i)	 Claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of applicability aggregating to `2,518.52 Lakh (previous year  
` 2,439.48 Lakh) as detailed below:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

a)	 Excise Duty 1,480.74 1,298.66

b)	 Service Tax 537.28 509.53

c)	 Sales Tax / Input VAT credits 330.03 529.20

d)	 Income Tax 170.47 102.09

Total 2,518.52 2,439.48

	 Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending at 
various forums / authorities.

	 ii)	 Central/State/Local Authority property taxes, lease rents, pipeline related re-instatement charges etc. claims disputed 
by the Company relating to issues of applicability and determination aggregating to `328.46 Lakh (previous year  
` 714.78 Lakh).

	 iii)	 Third party/other claims arising from disputes relating to contracts aggregating to `14.21 Lakh (previous year  
` 63.33 Lakh).

	 iv)	 Demand from GAIL (India) Limited in respect of additional transportation tariff for the period from November 2008 to 
March 2019 `16,764.78 Lakh (previous year `13,721.60 Lakh). The company has filed an appeal before Appellate 
Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL). The case is being heard at APTEL. Based on the legal opinion, the Company contends 
that the same is not payable and the Company does not expect outflow of resources.

	 v)	 Claims from consumers not acknowledged as debts `99.86 Lakh (previous year `38.84 Lakh).

	 vi)	 Liability on account of revision of trade margin as per contracts with Oil Marketing Companies with effect from April 1, 
2018 is yet to be determined in view of undergoing negotiations.

	 vii)	 There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. 
The company will provide liability if any prospectively and on receiving further clarity on the subject.
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31.10	DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES   
    DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (THE ACT) ARE AS FOLLOWS:

(` in Lakh)

Sr.  
No.

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
accounting year
a)	 Trade Payables
b)	 Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment

647.47
904.96

347.88
274.76

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
accounting year

- - 

(iii) The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the accounting year

- - 

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year

- -

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006

- -

The above information regarding Micro enterprises and Small enterprises has been determined based on information available with 
the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

31.11	PAYMENTS TO AUDITOR (INCLUDED IN MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES UNDER NOTE 29).

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

a.	 For Audit (Net of service tax input credit, where applicable) (amount for 2017-
18 includes `5.15 lakh paid to previous auditor)

46.02 44.08

b.	 For Company Law matters - -

c.	 For Other Services - -

d.	 Reimbursement of expenses 1.07 0.96
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31.12	CSR EXPENDITURE:
	 (a)	 Gross amount required to be spent by company for the year is `1,179.68 Lakh (previous year `999.89 Lakh)

	 (b)	 Amount spent during the period:

		  i.	 Construction/acquisition of asset ` Nil (previous year ` Nil)

		  ii.	 On purposes other than (i) above `576.48 Lakh (previous year `294.27 Lakh) (Refer Note 29)

31.13	REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS:
	 Disaggregated revenue information
	 Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers (refer note 23):

(` in Lakh)

Type of goods or service For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Sale of Natural Gas (Including Excise Duty)        3,03,126.77        2,43,309.15 

Sale of Pipes, Fittings and Other Materials               524.28                450.75 

Other Operating Income            2,028.29             1,531.84 

Total revenue from Contract with Customers       3,05,679.34         2,45,291.74 

	 Sale of Natural gas is the main activity of city gas distribution business and other operating income is incidental to sale of 
natural gas. Other Operating Income includes significantly the compensation towards minimum contracted quantity for the 
respective billing period and application fee collected from customers. Sale of pipes, fittings and other material is revenue 
incidental to the activity of construction of pipeline network for own use for the purpose of sale and distribution of natural gas 
to customers. The company sells and distributes natural gas in India. 

	 Sale of natural gas includes excise duty but excludes VAT collected from the customers on behalf of the Government.

	 All the revenue mentioned above are earned by transfer of goods or services at a point of time.

Contract Balances

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

As at 1st April 
2017

Trade Receivables (refer note 4)        9,959.43        8,867.37        9,395.62 

Unbilled Revenue (refer note 12) 3,854.29 3,144.16 2,787.65

Contract Liabilities (refer note 22)        1,813.55 1,567.02 1,566.72

	 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 60 days. Contract liabilities are the advances 
paid by the customers against which supply of natural gas is to happen after the reporting date.

	 Revenue recognised out of amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is `742.14 Lakh (previous year 
`817.86 Lakh). No amount recognised as revenue out of performance obligations satisfied fully or partially in previous year.

	 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price.
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

Revenue as per Contracted Price 3,05,693.38 2,45,304.87

ECS Discount 14.04 13.13

Revenue from Contract with Customers (refer note 23)       3,05,679.34        2,45,291.74 

	 Performance obligations	
	 The Company earns revenues primarily from sale of natural gas. Revenue is recognised on supply of gas to customers by 

metered/assessed measurements. There are not any return rights attached to the sale, hence no right of return liability or 
asset exists.

	 There are not any performance obligations remaining to be satisfied as at reporting date for which transaction price has 
been allocated.

31.14	 The board of directors, at its meeting held on 9th May 2019, has proposed a final dividend of `10.50/- per equity share 
of face value `10/- each for the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2019. This is in addition to the interim dividend of 
`9.50/- per equity share paid during the year. With this, the total dividend for the year is `20/- per equity share of face 
value `10/- each. The proposal is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held and 
if approved would result in a cash outflow of approximately `12,504/- Lakh, including corporate dividend tax.

31.15  The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary.

In terms of our report attached

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324982E/E300003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mahanagar Gas Limited

Per Vikram Mehta                                        
Partner
Membership No: 105938 

Sanjib Datta
Managing Director
DIN: 07008785

S M Ranade
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No: 39230

Alok Mishra
CS & Compliance Officer
ACS No: A-15967

Place : Mumbai  
Date  : May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2019
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MGL signed an (MoU) with Tata Power to foray into  
emerging e-mobility business

Tripod Beta Trainning

Painting competition for employees’ kids

Inaugration of Taloja Store

Business Partner Meet

Foundation Day

MGL & Maruti join hands to continue their endeavour  
 for ‘Go Green’

MGL at Glance
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